
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change,  
Councillor Nick Bennett 
 
TUESDAY, 17 OCTOBER 2023 AT 1.00 PM  
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 18 September 2023  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2.   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct  
 

3.   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4.   Former Sidley Depot, Elva Way, Bexhill-on-Sea - Disposal of Freehold  (Pages 5 - 10) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer  
 

5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 9 October 2023 
 
Contact Sophie Webb, Governance and Democracy Officer,  
01273 337495 
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default 
 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change, Councillor Nick 
Bennett, on 18 September 2023 at Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams  

 

 
33. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 24 JULY 2023  
 
33.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 24 
July 2023. 
 
34. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 
34.1 There were none. 
 
35. URGENT ITEMS  
 
35.1 There were none. 
 
36. REPORTS  
 
36.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 
 
37. EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL'S MODERN SLAVERY STATEMENT FOR THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 2022/2023  
 
37.1 The Deputy Leader and Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating 
Officer. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
37.2 The Deputy Leader and Lead Member RESOLVED to co-sign the Modern Slavery 
Statement together with the Chief Executive. 
 
REASONS 
 
37.3 Although not yet formally mandated, the government has indicated that local authorities 
with an annual budget of more than £36 million should comply with the requirements of section 
54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and publish a slavery and human trafficking statement. East 
Sussex County Council’s 2022/23 statement, as set out in Appendix 1 of the report, is designed 
to comply with this requirement. 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Report to:  Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change 

  

Date of meeting:  

  

17 October 2023  

By:  Chief Operating Officer   

  

Title:  Former Sidley Depot, Elva Way, Bexhill-on-Sea – Disposal of Freehold 

  

Purpose:  To declare the property to be surplus to the operational 

requirements of the Council and to agree to dispose of the asset in 

accordance with s123 of the Local Government Act 1972  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is recommended to:  

1) Declare the Former Sidley Depot, Bexhill-on-Sea shown in Appendix 1 (“the 
Site”) to be surplus to the requirements of the Council; 

2) Approve the disposal of the Site in accordance with s123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972; 

3) Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to agree the terms of the sale 
to achieve best value for the Site in accordance with s123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, including proceeding with the next best offer(s) in the 
event of the transaction(s) not completing within the expected timelines; and  

4) Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to take all actions necessary 
to give effect to the recommendations in this report. 

 

 

1  Background  

1.1 The site comprises a former Highways depot, including a pre-fabricated two storey 
office, brick-built stores and a large yard. The extent of the Site is shown in Appendix 
1 (the “Site”).  
 

1.2 The Site is approximately 0.3885 hectares (0.96 acres). It is accessed from Elva Way, 
which joins to the A269 and A2690 and is adjacent to the Elva Business Centre and 
Napier House. The Elva Business Centre and Napier House scheme, developed in 
2012, is owned by Rother District Council and comprises light industrial and office 
space formed in three blocks. The immediate surrounding area has some residential 
properties which are accessed separately.   
 

1.3 The Council acquired the freehold of the Site in 1974. It has since been used as a 
Highways Depot and became surplus to operational requirements from 1 May 2023. 
Following the re-procurement of the Highways Maintenance Services Contract this 
asset is no longer needed.  
 

1.4 The Site has not been specifically allocated in Rother District Council’s Adopted 
Development and Site Allocations Local Plan (December 2019) but is considered to 
be suitable for economic and business use, the retention of which is established by 
Policy EC3 of the Local Plan Core Strategy. 

 
2  Supporting information  

 
2.1  Four options for the Site were considered by the Property Asset Management Board 

on 13 April 2023. These options were:  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



1) Retain for a Council service; 
2) Dispose of the freehold via Community Asset Transfer or market sale; 
3) Rent to an East Sussex County Council (ESCC) partner; 
4) Rent to an external tenant.  
 

 
2.2  Option 1 (Retain for a Council service): the Directorates have confirmed that there is 

no operational service need for the Site.  
 
2.3 Option 2 (Dispose of the Freehold): the Site is not considered suitable for a community 

asset transfer due to the condition of the buildings and its former use. It is not listed as 
an Asset of Community Value under the Localism Act 2011. The Site is likely to be 
considered as a development site with potential for employment use (subject to relevant 
consents being obtained), which supports economic development goals. There is a 
good level of demand in the open market for a Site of this nature.  

 
2.4  Option 3 (Rent to an ESCC partner): the existing buildings are considered to be end of 

life and would require significant refurbishment if they were to be let on the open market.  
This work would either need to be undertaken by the Council at its expense, or by way 
of a lengthy rent free or incentive period via a tenant.  

 
2.5  Option 4 (Rent to an external tenant): for the reasons given for Option 3, Option 4 is 

also considered impractical in commercial terms. 
 
2.6 The Site is not classified as open space land, as defined by Section 336(1) of the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990. Therefore, there is no requirement for the Council to 
advertise its intention to dispose of the land for two consecutive weeks prior to a 
decision being made.   

 
2.7 The disposal of this Site will result in a capital receipt. The Council seeks to maximise 

the levels of these resources which will be available to support the Council’s capital 
plans and reduce the need to borrow in accordance with the Council’s Capital Strategy 
and also supports the Council’s Asset Management Plan 2020-2025. 

 
2.8 Option 2 is therefore considered to be the most appropriate approach for the site. 
 
2.9 The Local East Sussex County Council Member has been consulted on the sale of the 

Site.   
 
3  Conclusion and reasons for recommendations   

 

3.1  The Council has no ongoing operational use for the Site. It is therefore surplus to the 
Council’s requirements. The disposal of the Site will reduce revenue liabilities relating 
to the management and holding costs of this surplus asset, as well as providing the 
Council with a capital receipt. 

 
3.2  The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is therefore recommended to:  

 Declare the Former Sidley Depot, Bexhill-on-Sea shown in Appendix 1 (“the Site”) 
to be surplus to the requirements of the Council; 

 Approve the disposal of the Site in accordance with s123 of the Local Government 
Act 1972; 

 Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to agree the terms of the sale to 
achieve best value for the Site in accordance with s.123 of the Local Government 
Act 1972, including proceeding with the next best offer(s) in the event of the 
transaction(s) not completing within the expected timelines; and  

Page 6



 Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to take all actions necessary to 
give effect to the recommendations in this report. 

 
   

ROS PARKER 

Chief Operating Officer 

 

Contact Officer: Rebecca Lewis 

Tel: 01273 335873 

Email: rebecca.lewis@eastsussxex.gov.uk 

 

Assistant Director – Property: Nigel Brown 
Tel: 01273 481406 
Email: nigel.brown@eastsussex.gov.uk  

  

LOCAL MEMBERS  

Councillor Abul Azad – Bexhill North 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

None  

  

 

Page 7

mailto:rebecca.lewis@eastsussxex.gov.uk
mailto:nigel.brown@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Map Title: Sidley Depot Plan

1:1,250Scale:
Date: Map No:9/3/17 1

ZT/RPAuthor:

East Sussex County Council
County Hall
St Annes Crescent
Lew es

16.2m

11
0

76

10
0

15.6m

10
2

10
8

63

91

51

BU
XT

ON
 D

RI
VE

Br
oo

k H
ou

se

11
8

75

64

88

115

87
8

17.8m

7

24.2m

103

FB

12

Kimberley

23
5

214

26
9

Court

23
9

202

LO
ND

ON
 RO

AD

Ho
nie

s C
ou

rt

26
5

to

Depot

39

WOODSGATE AVENUE

44

50

17.5m

to

21.0m

11

27
1

283

206

27

1 t
o 6

22

1 to 8

21
9

40

21
20

Sidley Goods Yard

25

28

29

27

26

24
Nich

ols W
orks

hop

Edge W
orks

hop

Elva
 Busin

ess
 Centre

31

32

FF

CS

Und

Und

FF

FF

Dr
ain

Collects

CO
MBE

 VA
LL

EY
 W

AY

BU
XT
ON
 D
RI
VE

CO
MB
E V
AL
LEY
 WA
Y

ELV
A W
AY

LO
ND
ON
 RO
AD

WOODSGATE AVENU E

BIR
CH
 VIE
W

CAMBRIDGE ROAD

GRANGE COU RT DRIVE

´

Aerial Photog raphy © Getm apping .com  2013.
© East Sussex County Council 2015.

This m ap is reproduced from  Ordnance Survey m aterial w ith the
perm ission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her 
Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crow n copyrig ht. U nauthorised 
reproduction infring es Crow n copyrig ht and m ay lead to prosecution
or civil proceeding s. 100019601. 2015.

T

T
T

T

T
T

Page 9

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 18 September 2023
	4 Former Sidley Depot, Elva Way, Bexhill-on-Sea - Disposal of Freehold
	Appendix 1


